
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

         28 August 2013 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Thursday, 5 September 2013 

beginning at 
5:30 pm 

in the 
Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Mrs Cathie Fraser Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish Councillor Godfrey G Olson 
Councillor Derek R Pretty Councillor Steve Sollitt 
Councillor Mrs Jane Welsh  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Alison Ball, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel:  023 8068 8111; Email: alison.ball@eastleigh.gov.uk  
  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 
item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Services Officer above 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 

Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2013.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013    (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 25 November 2013 at 6:00 pm 

in the Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 1 July 2013  (6:00 pm – 6:11 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, Mrs Fraser, Irish, Olson, 
Pretty and Mrs Welsh 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors House and Sollitt 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 
WELCOME 

The Chair firstly welcomed Elizabeth Taylor and Elaine Burnell, the 
Council’s Independent Members, to the meeting.  
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2013 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. STANDARDS COMPLAINTS - ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which reminded Members that the Council had 
adopted a new code of Conduct on 26 July 2012 for dealing with 
complaints. 
 
The investigation of complaints was delegated to the Monitoring Officer 
who would report annually to this Committee on the complaints received 
and action taken. 
 
In the last year the Monitoring Officer had received two complaints: 
 

- A complaint from a parish councillor about the behaviour of 
another parish councillor and a borough councillor. The 
Monitoring Officer considered the complaint, and after consulting 
with one of the Independent Persons, it was decided not to 
investigate the complaint as it was not felt that there had been a 
breach of the Code of Conduct; 

Agenda Item 1

1



- A complaint from a member of the public about correspondence 
with a borough councillor. This complaint was received recently 
and was on-going. 

Councillor Olson had concerns that an annual report of complaints 
received and action taken was insufficient and proposed that the 
procedure be amended to present a more detailed report at every meeting 
of this Committee. This proposal was not supported by other Members 
who felt it unwise to change procedure; complaints were often vexatious, 
and discussion of individual cases in an open forum could harm 
reputations and cause unnecessary upset. The Monitoring Officer added 
that if, following an investigation, there was a case to take action then that 
would be brought before Members for consideration. 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that Dave Bevis, the Council’s lead 
Independent Person in post until 30 June 2013, was unwell. Members 
wished to convey their thanks Mr Bevis for his involvement and 
contribution to the standards regime since his appointment under the 
previous standards arrangement in May 2010, and wished him a speedy 
recovery and all the best for the future. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
That the report be noted. 
 

4. DISCLOSURE AND BARRING PROCEDURE 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services following a change to the Disclosure and Barring 
Service (DBS – formally CRB) procedure. 
 
The change to the DBS process was part of the Government’s aim to put 
the individual in greater control of their own data. Individuals were now 
able to challenge the information the DBS released before it was seen by 
their current or prospective employer. In addition, the DBS was creating 
the DBS Update Service which required the applicant to pay an annual 
subscription of £13 to keep their certificate up-to-date and take it with them 
from role to role.  
 
This meant that the Council no longer received a copy of the DBS 
certificate, and it was recommended that all existing drivers be required to 
present their DBS certificate to the Licensing department within seven 
days of receipt, unless subscribed to the DBS Update Service. Failure to 
do so would result in the licence being suspended until such time as the 
certificate was produced. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the procedure for licensing drivers in relation to the Disclosure 
and Barring Service (DBS) checks be amended to include:  

2



I. That new applicants must produce a copy of their DBS 
certificate before their application was considered; and 

II. That existing drivers not subscribed to the DBS Certificate 
Update must present a copy of their certificate to the Licensing 
Team within 7 days of receipt.  Failure to do so would result in 
the Licence being suspended until such time as a satisfactory 
certificate was produced.   

 
M5057 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITEE 

5 September 2013 

CABINET  

5 September 2013 

SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION TO ADMINISTRATION COMMITEE 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee considers this report and 
makes any comments to Cabinet. 
 

RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET  
 
It is recommended that Cabinet agree the fees proposed in the report of £267 Mobile 
Licence, Site Licence £351 and note the changes made by the introduction of Scrap 
Metal Dealers Act 2013.      
 

Summary 
 
This report requests members to agree the fee for both site licences and mobile licences 
issued under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013.   

 

Introduction 

1. The new Scrap Metal Dealers Act comes into force on the 1st October 2013.  
Previously Scrap Metal Dealers and Motor Salvage Operators simply had to 
register with the Local Authority – there was no requirement for a licence to be 
issued.  Under the new legislation any scrap metal dealers (including mobile 
collectors) or motor salvage operator have to be licensed with their Local 
Authority.   Councils will now be able to refuse to grant a licence where the 
applicant is judged not to be a suitable person to operate as a scrap metal 
dealer.  This will therefore improve the operating standards of those dealers 
who do not operate in the same way as the majority of reputable dealers.   

 

Agenda Item 4

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

Background 

2. In recent years metal theft has been one of the fastest growing crimes in the 
UK.  It affects communities, businesses and Councils themselves and a 
survey conducted by the Local Government Association (LGA) showed that 
metal theft cost Councils over £5.25 million in 2010/2011.  

3. Since 2011 a number of organisations including the Police, Councils and the 
Environment Agency through ‘Operation Tornado’ have been successful in 
reducing the amount of metal theft in the UK.  This led to the LGA along with 
other bodies pressing the Government to update the regulations relating the 
scrap metal dealers.  Following this Richard Ottaway MP took the Scrap Metal 
Dealers Act 2013 through parliament as a private members’ bill.   

4. The main difference between the old legislation and the new legislation is the 
introduction of a cashless system as the new legislation makes it an offence to 
buy scrap for cash.  The only ways that people can pay for scrap will be by 
cheque or electronic transfer of funds.   

5. The new Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 replaces the existing Scrap Metal 
Dealers Act 1964 and the Vehicles (crime) Act 2001 which relates to motor 
salvage operators.  Under the old legislation any scrap metal dealers simply 
had to register with the Local Council.  Now Councils will be able to refuse to 
grant a licence where they feel the applicant is not a suitable person to 
operate. One way of ensuring that the applicant is a suitable person is to 
ensure that applicants produce a basic disclosure. Councils can also consult 
with other organisations for example, the Environment Agency and the Police.  

6. Should the Local Authority propose to refuse an application the applicant 
should be notified.  The applicant then has at least 14 days to make 
representations.  Should the applicant not make representations, the Local 
Authority can then refuse the application.  Should the applicant wish to make 
representations the Local Authority must consider them and should the 
applicant want to make oral representations then the Local Authority should 
provide them with the opportunity to appear before a Committee (or sub 
committee to be discussed in a later report).   

7. If any application is refused then the dealer has 21 days in which to make an 
appeal to the magistrates’ court.   

8. The Scrap Metals Dealers Act 2013 comes into effect on the 1 October 2013 
with enforcement commencing on the 1 December 2013.  There will be a 
transitional period for any scrap metal dealers already registered with the 
Local Council prior to the 1 October 2013.  Anyone already registered can 
continue to operate provided that they submit an application by 15 October 
2013.  The Council can then consider the application and grant or refuse the 
licence.  Any scrap metal dealers not registered prior to 1 October 2013 
cannot operate legally until a licence has been issued.  

9. Any licences granted will last for 3 years.  There are two different types of 
licences specified within the Act – these are: 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

Site Licence – All sites where a licensee carries on business as a scrap 
metal dealer have to be identified, and a site manager has to be named for 
each site.  This licence allows the licensee to transport scrap metal to and 
from those sites from any local authority area.  

Collectors Licence – This allows the licensee to operate as a collector in the 
area of the issuing authority.  It does not allow the collector to operate in any 
other local authority area, so a separate licence has to be obtained from each 
council the collector wishes to operate in. The licence does not authorise the 
licensee to operate a site.   

However a dealer can only hold one type of licence in any Local Authority 
Area.   

10. Scrap Metal is defined in the Act as any old, waste or discarded metal or 
metallic material or any product, article or assembly which is made from or 
contains metal and is broken, worn out or regarded by its last holder as having 
reached the end of its useful life.  But gold, silver and any alloy of which 2 per 
cent or more by weight is attributable to gold or silver is not considered scrap 
metal.    

11. Currently we have 2 motor salvage operators registered with Eastleigh 
Borough Council.  We do not have any Scrap Metal Dealers, however with the 
introduction of mobile collectors requiring a licence to collect in the Eastleigh 
Borough we estimate that there could be at least 10 mobile collectors.   

 

Fees 

12. Any application for a licence must be accompanied by a fee.  The Act allows 
Councils to recover the costs relating to administering and seeking 
compliance within the regime.   

13. The EU services directive states that any fee charged can only be used to pay 
for the costs associated with the licensing process.  This includes the time 
spent assessing and administering applications, processing them, having 
experienced licensing officers review them, storing the paperwork, consulting 
on the suitability of the applicant, reviewing relevant offences, the decision on 
whether to issue a licence, training for staff and councillors, support from legal 
team and the cost of any materials used in relating to the actual licence.  The 
Council can also charge for inspecting licensed premises.  It cannot charge for 
enforcement of unlicensed premises.  The Council can also recover costs for 
a licensing hearing should this be necessary.  It is estimated that 
approximately 10% of applications would be required to go before a licensing 
hearing.   

14. The existing cost of registering as a motor salvage operator is £120  

15. At present the registration of a Scrap Metal Dealer does not attract a fee.    

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

16. The fee is calculated based on the table below:  

  (£) 

Process Application 
(8 hrs x £14) 112 

Administration Costs (incl 
printing, storing etc) 40 

Referral to Committee  
(based on 10% of total (1) applicants) 

          
67 

Legal Advice (@ £120 p/h x 2 hrs based on 20% (2) averaged over 
estimated number of applicants 10) 48 

Mobile Licence Fee 267 

Annual Site Visit (@ £14 p/h x 6 hrs) 84 

Site Licence Fee 351 
 

 

17. It is proposed that the fee for a site licence will be £351 and a mobile licence 
will be £267.       

18. These fees will be reviewed regularly to ensure that the fees remain 
appropriate and will be reported as part of the Fees & Charges report.  

Risk Assessment 

19. There will be risks associated with visiting scrap metal dealers.  However we 
take into account corporate health and safety and after a risk assessment has 
been coordinated about a potential site visit the Council can involve the Local 
Police who are happy to visit with the Local Authority, if it is  felt that this is 
necessary.   

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

20. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as this report 
follows new legislation introduced which will ensure equality for all.   

 

Financial Implications 

21. A fee will be charged for the processing for applications received under the 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act so this will cover the costs.  However as the Council 
cannot charge for enforcement of unlicensed premises/collectors there may 
be increased financial costs to the Council. (R (Hemming & others) v 
Westminster City Council).  

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

 

Conclusion 

22. In conclusion the new Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 will give the Council 
more control over Scrap Metal Dealers.  In order for the Council to process 
applications under the new act we are required to set a fee.  To that end 
Members are advised to agree the fees as recommended in this report.   

 

RICHARD WARD  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services  

 
 

Date: 21 August 2013 
Contact Officer: Jennifer Dunn  
Tel No: 023 80688109 
e-mail: Jennifer.dunn@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report.  This list does not include any published 
works or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.   

None    

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

